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          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good afternoon.

          3  (In Spanish) Happy Quanza, Seasons Greetings.  I'm

          4  Council Member Bill Perkins, and I want to welcome

          5  everyone. This is the Governmental Operations

          6  Committee, and I have the privilege of chairing the

          7  Committee.

          8                 Today we're going to be looking at

          9  proposed Intro. No. 119-A, electronic recording of

         10  official documents. A ground-breaking piece of

         11  legislation, not only for our City but I believe for

         12  our country.

         13                 It will be a model of what we can do

         14  to make government more susceptible to the public,

         15  by using the latest technology and by the

         16  cooperation of the legislative, as well as the

         17  administrative arm of government, and I want to take

         18  a moment to thank Council Member Gale Brewer and her

         19  staff for the extraordinary work that they have done

         20  to get us to this point.

         21                 It's a fairly technical piece of

         22  legislation in some respects, especially for those

         23  who are somewhat computer illiterate and bamboozled

         24  by the new technology.

         25                 Fortunately, the younger generation
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          2  is much more versed than those of us of the not so

          3  younger generation.

          4                 I also want to take a moment to

          5  express appreciation to the administration and the

          6  folks that are about to testify for their

          7  cooperation in helping us move this piece of

          8  legislation forward, and I know that it was a

          9  productive collaborative relationship that I think

         10  resulted in again something that is truly remarkable

         11  for this Council and for the Administration and for

         12  the City.

         13                 So, let me just read my opening

         14  remarks. Today's hearing is on proposed Introductory

         15  Bill No. 119-A. A local law requiring that official

         16  documents issued by the City and its agencies be

         17  made available to the public on the World Wide Web.

         18                 Before I go any further, you know we

         19  have passed a bill requiring that all phones in

         20  public places be turned off. This is a public place.

         21                 We didn't pass that bill yet, but

         22  let's practice in anticipation.

         23                 Being made available on the World

         24  Wide Web. We first reviewed this bill on September

         25  18th, 2002. This legislation has since been revised
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          2  and the Committee is now revisiting the bill.

          3                 This hearing is being held with the

          4  Select Committee on Technology in Government chaired

          5  by the Councilwoman Gale Brewer from Manhattan.

          6                 This bill is important to the

          7  Committee because it deals with increasing the

          8  technological sophistication of our government. It

          9  represents an auspicious first step in bringing us

         10  closer to making government as open and accessible

         11  to the people as is possible.

         12                 Representative government should not

         13  be shrouded in mystery. Recently revolutionary

         14  developments in technology afford us the opportunity

         15  to better integrate our constituents into the

         16  political process and we should take advantage of

         17  such opportunities.

         18                 Additionally, proposed Intro. 119-A

         19  gives us a chance to upgrade government, and gives

         20  us a chance to streamline efficiency, and

         21  presentability.

         22                 The federal government, in the

         23  government paper reduction act of 1995 has already

         24  mandated on a federal level the migration of

         25  information to electronic dissemination systems.
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          2                 Proposed Intro. 119-A, although not

          3  as sweeping a mandate as the paper reduction act of

          4  1995 is a step in the right direction of creating a

          5  more efficient, cost saving and environmental

          6  friendly paperless government that does not waste

          7  its precious resources nor time.

          8                 Although proposed Intro. 119-A is no

          9  panacea for government ills, it offers us the chance

         10  to take our government through a state-of-the-art.

         11  It would be a first for New York and for City and

         12  for State government generally.

         13                 Before I ask Council Member Gale

         14  Brewer if she would like to say a few words, I would

         15  like to introduce the members of the Committee.

         16                 First, on my far left, the Chairman

         17  of our Parks and Recreation Committee, Joseph

         18  Addabbo, Jr. Next to him is the Chairwoman of our

         19  Housing and Buildings Committee, from the great

         20  Borough of the Bronx, the mainland, as they say,

         21  Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano. And then there is

         22  from Kings, the County of Kings, our own Chairman of

         23  our Senior Center Committee, Council Member Michael

         24  Nelson. And next to me I want to thank Matthew

         25  Tollin, Counsel to the Committee, for the wonderful
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          2  work that he's done, along with our Policy Analyst

          3  Barbara Montefel, and the Policy Analyst for Gale

          4  Brewer's Committee Nick Noe.

          5                 And now, without further ado, I'd

          6  like to have our Chairwoman of the Technology

          7  Committee have some words to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Perkins. This is a special bill to me,

         10  because I have spent most of my adult life thinking

         11  about ways in which government information can be

         12  public even though it's supposed to, how do you

         13  actually get it to the public.

         14                 And, so, this is certainly an example

         15  in that direction. This bill is aimed squarely at

         16  making important statements from local government

         17  more easily accessible to the public and to the

         18  government and to advocates.

         19                 I hope that it will save time on

         20  things like FOIL. FOIL becomes very arduous when the

         21  statement of policy or compliance is from years, or

         22  from administrations in the past. And I think that

         23  in one of our meetings with the Administration, for

         24  instance, we pointed out that we hope that this will

         25  in fact save time for those FOIL officers who often
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          2  have to provide information, they can just direct

          3  people who are making requests to the web.

          4                 The bill that Governmental Operations

          5  Committee today is voting on does not specify

          6  enforcement provisions for non-compliance or where

          7  agencies simply fail to publish a mandated report in

          8  any form.

          9                 But it does represent, as Council

         10  Member Perkins said, a first step in the nation

         11  toward quantifying the important principle that

         12  migrating critical information to the Internet both

         13  saves money and increases accessibility.

         14                 We're very pleased about DORIS. This

         15  is a wonderful agency that will have a lot of say

         16  about how this bill is implemented. And as the

         17  Council Member indicated, this is the first. There

         18  are some cities, Portland, Seattle and San

         19  Francisco, but they often, in their legislation,

         20  insist an agency may make its records public or that

         21  the agency is encouraged to make its information

         22  public. This is the first time that it's mandated.

         23                 Just to give some examples that the

         24  bill would cover, to Nick Noe's credit, the Policy

         25  Analyst for this Committee, searched the
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          2  Administrative Code, he searched all of the Charter,

          3  and he searched all of the executive orders, and he

          4  identifies 127 reports in those bodies that would

          5  count toward what we think of as an official

          6  document, and needless to say, there was many, many

          7  meetings about that exact definition.

          8                 Just to give you an example,

          9  Department of Housing, Preservation and

         10  Development's annual Lead Poisoning Prevention and

         11  Control Report would be up on the web based on this

         12  bill; the Mayor's Annual Report on the Supply of

         13  Housing Accommodations within this City; the Police

         14  Department's Annual Report on the Stop Question and

         15  Frisk Program; the Department of Environmental

         16  Protection's annual report on the Locations of

         17  Hazardous Substances; the Parks' annual Hazardous

         18  Conditions Report; and the Department of Small

         19  Business' annual Report on Tax Abatement.

         20                 There may be others as time goes on.

         21  These are reports that are not up currently,

         22  although I want to give the Administration, Gino

         23  Menchini, DORIS and the staff of the City

         24  Legislative Affairs tremendous credit for actually

         25  putting some material out there for working with us
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          2  over quite a few months to define this material, and

          3  I want to join Council Member Perkins in thanking

          4  his Council, Matthew Tollin; also Jeff Haberman, who

          5  is Deputy Director of the Council's Infrastructure

          6  Division and Donna DeCostanzo, who is the Counsel to

          7  our Technology Committee.

          8                 Thank you very much, and I look

          9  forward to this implementation.

         10                 Thank you, Council Member Perkins.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Our first panel

         12  will consist of our representatives of the

         13  Department of Records and Information Services,

         14  known as DORIS. Mr. Brian G. Andersson is the

         15  Commissioner, and we'll welcome him and his

         16  colleagues.

         17                 You know, before we swear you in, I

         18  should make note of, one, the fact that Phil Reed is

         19  not with us today due to an important matter

         20  relating to a cultural institution in his district,

         21  and wanted me to extend his apologies, so to speak

         22  and appreciation to Gale and the Committee members

         23  for the work that is about to take place.

         24                 Secondly, you know, in this time of

         25  fiscal crisis, it's very important that as we move
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          2  forward with new legislation, that we understand the

          3  fiscal impacts, and I'm happy that our legislative

          4  financial analyst, Michael Schnorr, who is here with

          5  us, as well as the Assistant Director, Andrew

          6  Grossman, have prepared for us an Impact Statement,

          7  and I would just like to for the record indicate

          8  what those impacts would be, as we know them as to

          9  date. And according to their statement, there would

         10  be a $25,000 expenditure in FY '03 for the half-year

         11  salary of an administrator to handle all that kind

         12  of documents at the Department of Records and

         13  Information Services.

         14                 The full-year course of this position

         15  would be $50,000, however, contrary to our

         16  assessment, the Office of Management and Budget have

         17  projected an additional $40,000 expenditure on

         18  software development in FY '03, and an expenditure

         19  on personal service of 110,000 for FY '03 and  FY

         20  '04, and due to a lack of details and cooperation

         21  from OMB, the Finance Division maintains our noted

         22  impact on expenditures.

         23                 So right now we have a dispute as to

         24  what the impact will be, but it's not, thank

         25  goodness, a major difference in the fiscal impacts.
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          2  It's a difference that I'm sure will be resolved in

          3  such a way that it will have no negative bearing

          4  with regard to the ability for us to implement this

          5  without further aggravating the fiscal condition

          6  that our City is presently in.

          7                 Without further ado, our Counsel will

          8  swear you in.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         10  Can you raise your right hand.

         11                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm that

         12  the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: I do.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROLANDI: I do.

         16                 MR. PERKUS: I do.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         18  Could you each for the record state your name, the

         19  organization you're affiliated with and your

         20  position.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Brian

         22  Andersson, Commissioner of the Department of Records

         23  and Information Services.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROLANDI: Stephen

         25  Rolandi, Deputy Commissioner for the Department of
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          2  Records and Information Services.

          3                 MR. PERKUS: Paul Perkus, Director of

          4  the Municipal Reference and Research Center, which

          5  is part of the Department of Records and Information

          6  Services.

          7                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Good

          8  afternoon, distinguished members of the City Council

          9  Committee on Governmental Operations, and in some

         10  cases chairpersons in your own right. I'm Brian G.

         11  Andersson. I'm the Commissioner of the Department of

         12  Records and Information Services.

         13                 I'm pleased to come before you today

         14  to testify in support of proposed Intro. No. 119-A.

         15                 My staff has already been introduced,

         16  so let me just go on.

         17                 Intro. No. 119-A is legislation to

         18  amend the New York City Charter, requiring that

         19  official publications of the City agencies be

         20  submitted in electronic format, presently they're

         21  submitted in hard format, to the Department of

         22  Records and Information Services, and be made

         23  available to the public through the Department's

         24  website.

         25                 The Department supports Intro. 119-A,
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          2  as legislation that seeks to make important public

          3  documents more easily accessible to the public.

          4                 This legislation represents a unique

          5  and affirmative step toward implementing the basic

          6  premise of e-government, which is that both the

          7  general public and government benefit as measured in

          8  terms of cost, time and accessibility when critical

          9  government information is disseminated

         10  electronically via the Internet.

         11                 The Department also supports this

         12  legislation as it proposes an extension of the

         13  Charter's requirement that each agency deposit

         14  publications in a Municipal Reference Library, which

         15  would probably be better suited to be called City

         16  Hall Library.

         17                 Researchers would be made aware of

         18  the Department's other extensive published and

         19  archival resources, as well. These resources extend

         20  the City's knowledge foundation many years into the

         21  past and provide research depth not available

         22  elsewhere.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         24  testify and I'll now be happy to answer some

         25  questions at this time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Before we go to

          3  questions I want to acknowledge that we've been

          4  joined by the Chairwoman of our Education Committee

          5  from the Borough of Manhattan, Chairwoman Eva

          6  Moskowitz.

          7                 The next time you see her she

          8  hopefully will be 50 pounds lighter, and will have a

          9  bundle of joy in her arms.

         10                 In addition to her, we've been joined

         11  by our Majority Whip and Chairman of our Rules

         12  Committee, and he's obviously working on many, many

         13  important projects relating to the City Council and

         14  we're happy to have you with us today, and always.

         15                 Are there any questions of the

         16  members of the Committee.

         17                 Chairman Addabbo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Chairman,

         19  good morning.

         20                 Agree with me, if you believe as

         21  well, that I think today's piece of legislation is

         22  an initial step now, but as we advance ourselves

         23  technologically, that this becomes more important in

         24  the future, considering the amount of information,

         25  obviously, within our government, but how we get
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          2  that information out to those beyond these walls,

          3  and I do believe that this piece of legislation

          4  becomes more important as we go along.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: There's no

          6  question.

          7                 We found through various things like

          8  palm pilots, that we're firmly in the 21st century,

          9  and dissemination of knowledge, accessibility to

         10  important government publications, it's almost a

         11  no-brainer that it be on the Internet to make it

         12  accessible. Not everything is possible to be put on

         13  line. For example, some of the FOIL requests that

         14  Ms. Brewer spoke of, cannot be addressed by some of

         15  the documents that will be on line, some of them go

         16  to a more personal level.

         17                 But it does increase the public

         18  accessibility, which is what my agency is charged

         19  with doing, making things more accessible, not less

         20  accessible. So, I think it puts the onus on a lot of

         21  the other agencies, the branches of government to be

         22  forthcoming in getting this information to us to

         23  then be able to have on line.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Just to

         25  expand, something that you had said about the amount
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          2  of information available to be put on line, and not

          3  everything is capable of complying with this, for a

          4  second, let's talk about compliance. Does DORIS have

          5  a structure for the agencies to comply with this

          6  piece of legislation, if not now possibly in the

          7  future?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Well, we have

          9  it in place insofar as they're required to furnish,

         10  and Paul Perkus from the library can give you more

         11  details on this, but currently they're required to

         12  furnish three copies of every report. Three hard

         13  copies, one of which is required for circulation,

         14  the other two just for contingent purposes. But it

         15  will give a little extra added strength to that

         16  requirement.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And to,

         18  again, in the form of a structure, aside from the

         19  three copies, but to some will enforce an agency to

         20  do so, but, again, to follow-up or have oversight

         21  over each agency to get these reports or get that

         22  information to you so that it's able to be put on

         23  line?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: I think that

         25  this bill will help enforce that. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Councilwoman

          5  Provenzano.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have two

          7  questions, they may have been answered at a previous

          8  hearing, I'm not totally sure. But first of all, the

          9  things that would be going on your website, are they

         10  not now presently on the website for these City

         11  agencies?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: They're not

         13  presently available.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: They're

         15  not presently available, okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Our website

         17  is pertaining to our agency only.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But, for

         19  instance, Parks or HPD, or what have you, can you

         20  now find this information on their website?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: It depends.

         22  I'm sure in some cases some agencies do put their

         23  various reports on line but I'm not aware of it.

         24  You'd have to check each one individually.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: This
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          2  legislation requires that official publications of

          3  City agencies be submitted. Who makes the

          4  determination as to what constitutes an official

          5  publication? Because some of the things that my

          6  colleague, Council Member Brewer mentioned to me

          7  sounded more like statistical information rather

          8  than official publications.

          9                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: I think

         10  that's still be hammered out between the Technology

         11  in Government Committee, but for the most part,

         12  anything a City agency issues in the way of a public

         13  publication is something that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: A public

         15  publication would be something like that or --

         16                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: It could be,

         17  absolutely. It could be, or anything that they're

         18  required to furnish on a yearly basis or --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Right.

         20                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: It would just

         21  make sense that they would want to increase

         22  accessibility to those kinds of items and have it to

         23  us in a timely manner.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. But,

         25  again, who makes that decision as to what?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: I think

          3  that's still being hammered out, I don't know. It's

          4  not my agency.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Would you

          6  have an answer to that?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I think what we

          8  are talking about with the Administration, Council

          9  Member, is thinking about 127 reports that are

         10  actually mandated one way or the other through the

         11  Executive Order or the Charter or the Administrative

         12  Code, and actually I was going to ask the

         13  Commissioner if maybe that was going to be the

         14  beginning.

         15                 The reports that I listed are

         16  actually reports that are, you know, somewhat they

         17  have statistics in them but they are definitely

         18  mandated reports that have to be done officially by

         19  an agency and not currently up on the web.

         20                 They are great for researchers or for

         21  people who are working on studies, so they're

         22  figuring out what already exists.

         23                 So, I think the 127 was what we had

         24  talked about with the Administration as a baseline,

         25  and maybe go from there, and they are reports that

                                                            21

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  are mandated by the City Council or by an Executive

          3  Order to be published by a City agency.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And that

          5  is a good possibility up to this time that are not

          6  published on their own websites?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Correct.

          8  Absolutely correct. There are some that are.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Although

         10  you can probably get it from the agency if you asked

         11  for it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Oh, yes, you

         13  can definitely get it. You just wouldn't necessarily

         14  know it was there, or it would be more problematic

         15  to get it, just because it's time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, the

         17  future, I mean you listed 127 which seems to me to

         18  probably be a very small amount of what there

         19  actually is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We tried to be

         21  conservative, so as not to overburden the agencies

         22  to start with, and then we could go from there.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But,

         24  again, who would make that decision? Would it be

         25  your Committee? I don't get who decides what --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me interject

          3  just to say this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: One of the

          6  wonderful aspects of this bill, from my point of

          7  view, is that it's going to grow in terms of what we

          8  are going to be able to do with this new type of

          9  legislation, in terms of including more and more and

         10  more, and become refined, and the reason why that's

         11  exciting to me is because the technology is going to

         12  make it that easier.

         13                 So, it's not going to be -- the way

         14  technology is going now, it's probably going to be

         15  no burden whatsoever to do it.

         16                 I would hope that to some extent, the

         17  answer to your question as to who determines what's

         18  official and what has to go on will be determined by

         19  this body, as the legislative body as to what we

         20  think the public needs to know or have access to

         21  through that medium, and I think over time that

         22  changes. You know what I mean? As we begin to see

         23  what is important, then we will make that

         24  determination, and right now it seems as if there's

         25  been a negotiation to look at 127 official reports.
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          2  But that is, you know, as the legislative thing

          3  goes, going to change over time, either some stuff

          4  may be determined no longer to be necessary and

          5  other stuff may be determined to be necessary. You

          6  see what I'm saying?

          7                 So, I think that's why the bill is

          8  not a finished product so-to-speak.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: As are

         10  most bills we do. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Government is a

         12  dynamic not a static process, you know? Like most

         13  works of art.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Well, it

         15  will be great if it doesn't fall by the wayside, and

         16  it is something that people constantly review and go

         17  to and make decisions on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And that's the

         19  wonderful thing about being in the Council because

         20  we have the opportunity to review those matters

         21  through our various oversight committees.

         22                 Chairwoman Brewer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         24                 The very quick question is, do you

         25  think, I know this was sort of covered in our
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          2  discussion, but do you think that the 127 would be

          3  the basis? Because to answer the Councilwoman's

          4  question, I think that these particular 127 are

          5  already mandated and they're already part of our

          6  Charter or our Administrative Code or the Executive

          7  Order, and they're already mandated to be published

          8  and to be public. So, it was just putting them up on

          9  the Internet as opposed to just making them

         10  available by public, by public request.

         11                 So, would that be the basis on which

         12  you would begin? That is what the legislation

         13  states, and that would give you sort of a base to

         14  decide whether or not the law is complied with; is

         15  that sort of what your thinking is on this?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: That's my

         17  thinking, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I earlier made

         21  note of the fiscal impacts, which I think relatively

         22  speaking are very minimal, even if we disagree with

         23  some of the numbers the Administration has put

         24  forward, but nevertheless, I'm wondering, with those

         25  impacts, do you still anticipate cost savings as a
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          2  result of this legislation?

          3                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Well, cost

          4  savings, I hesitate when I heard about the

          5  paper-free environment and things like that, I think

          6  I've read studies where the computer era has

          7  actually generated more paper than ever before, I

          8  think all of us have printed things out from the

          9  Internet and got that extra page with the

         10  advertisements on it, we sort of toss it in the

         11  recycle bin --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Is there

         13  something we can do about that through your

         14  Committee?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Sure, Mr.

         16  Perkins.

         17                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: So, it's

         18  never going to be paper-free, and indeed as

         19  archivists, we like to get our hands dirty with old

         20  documents, as you know, and as much as we trust

         21  this, you know, this could evaporate very quickly

         22  and then where are we?

         23                 So, as archivists, we still want

         24  those three copies. We still want people to be able

         25  to come to a library and understand how to use it

                                                            26

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  and have these things available. This just offers

          3  another way to make it accessible.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: But you might

          5  not in other words save in terms of paper per se,

          6  but there will be cost savings in other ways do you

          7  think?

          8                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: I'm not sure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Efficiencies.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Insofar as we

         11  still require those three copies, and we're going to

         12  have it available this way, I don't know that we're

         13  going to forego space savings, let's say, in the

         14  libraries. Instead of having three copies, have a CD

         15  available. I don't foresee that any time soon. I'd

         16  be very hesitant to --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay, other than

         18  the staffing requirements that were noted in the

         19  fiscal impact statement that I read, do you see any

         20  other staffing needs?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: No. I think

         22  we're going to be working in conjunction with the

         23  Department of Information, Technology and

         24  Telecommunications. They'll lend us some of their

         25  expertise as well. So, maybe some of that burden
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          2  will fall on them, as opposed to individual

          3  agencies, or my agency in particular.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Now, I know that

          5  Councilwoman Brewer made note of the silence of the

          6  legislation in terms of enforcement and compliance;

          7  have you had any thoughts about that, in terms of

          8  how DORIS might be able to get some compliance from

          9  the various agencies?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Well, every

         11  year we issue a letter under the Commissioner's

         12  signature, that reminds the agencies of their duties

         13  and responsibilities in furnishing these. So, I mean

         14  it's a gentle reminder for the year, and for the

         15  most part the agencies are compliant.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay.

         17                 Please let us know if you have

         18  problems in that area, and not from the punitive

         19  point of view, just so we can sort of keep track of

         20  how we're able to truly effectuate this bill.

         21                 If there are problems with agencies

         22  doing it that we may not have anticipated, or

         23  something like that, it would be helpful if you

         24  would let us know.

         25                 We have been joined by another
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          2  Chairman, the Chairman of the Public Safety

          3  Committee from the Borough of Queens. Chairman Peter

          4  Vallone, Jr. Thank you for joining us again.

          5                 Are there any other questions from

          6  the members?

          7                 Okay, thank you very much for your

          8  testimony and the good work that you've done in

          9  getting us to this point.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ANDERSSON: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Next will be a

         12  panel consisting of, and forgive me if I say this

         13  name wrong, a representative of the Municipal Arts

         14  Society of New York, Ms. Micaela Birmingham, Planner

         15  and GIS Specialist, who previously worked for the

         16  City of New York, Department of Parks and Recreation

         17  as a geographic information systems, GIS Analyst,

         18  and is currently a planner and Director of GIS for

         19  the Municipal Arts Society of New York.

         20                 She is also a Project Manager for the

         21  Campaign for Community-Based Planning, aimed at

         22  promoting neighborhood-based planning in New York

         23  City, and is directing a community information

         24  technology network for New York City's community

         25  boards.
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          2                 Joining her from the Center for New

          3  York City Law, Professor Ross Sandler, Jonathan

          4  Rosenbloom and Philippe Flamant.

          5                 Please come forward to the table,

          6  Jonathan Rosenbloom and Ross Sandler. Is Philippe

          7  Flamant available? Okay, so if you'd like to sit up

          8  here just to be in the picture so-to-speak, it's up

          9  to you. If you're shy, you can stay where you are.

         10                 Thank you for joining us, and we'll

         11  have you sworn in and we'll hear your testimony.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Welcome, and

         13  good afternoon. Could you please raise your right

         14  hand?

         15                 Do you solemnly swear or affirm the

         16  testimony you're about to give is the truth, the

         17  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         18                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: I do.

         19                 MR. SANDLER: I do.

         20                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: I do.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         22  Could you each state your name, organization you're

         23  affiliated with and your position?

         24                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Micaela Birmingham,

         25  the Municipal Arts Society of New York. I'm the

                                                            30

          1  GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  Director Geographic Information Systems.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: Jonathan Rosenbloom,

          4  Associate Director of the Center for New York City

          5  Law.

          6                 MR. SANDLER: I'm Ross Sandler,

          7  Director of the Center for New York City Law, and

          8  Professor of Law.

          9                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Hello. My name is

         10  Micaela Birmingham, and I'm the Director of the

         11  Geographic Information System Program at the

         12  Municipal Arts Society of New York.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  comment on proposed Local Law 119-A.

         15                 The Municipal Arts Society commends

         16  the City Council for the proposed amendments to the

         17  New York City Charter in order to make all official

         18  City reports available over the World Wide Web.

         19                 This will allow for greater public

         20  access to information that is presently difficult to

         21  find, time consuming to obtain and entails

         22  significant printing or copying costs.

         23                 In addition, the availability of

         24  official documents over the Internet will allow for

         25  increased coordination among City agencies, thus
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          2  increasing the efficiency of government.

          3                 There are three issues we would like

          4  to ask the City Council to consider with respect to

          5  the technical manner in which this bill is carried

          6  out, as well as the scope of documents that

          7  constitute an official report.

          8                 First, a protocol should be

          9  established for the creation, storage and archiving

         10  of official documents in a manner that allows users

         11  to perform a comprehensive on-line search and query

         12  of City documents by City agency, subject and date.

         13                 This would further enhance the

         14  efficiency and accessibility of documents on the web

         15  for research, business and educational purposes.

         16                 Secondly, measures should be taken to

         17  ensure that community boards have the necessary

         18  hardware and software resources, staff and training

         19  necessary to ensure their ability to comply with

         20  this law one year after its enactment.

         21                 Third and finally, the City should

         22  include in its definition of documents to be

         23  available on the Internet, digital geographic

         24  information created by the Department of

         25  Information, Technology and Telecommunications, the
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          2  Department of City Planning, and other City agencies

          3  creating information with GIS, Geographic

          4  Information Systems.

          5                 Digital map layers of the Bytes of

          6  the Big Apple and the NYCMap that are deemed by the

          7  City to be unsensitive for security purposes, should

          8  be made available via the web.

          9                 This local law is an important step

         10  to New York City becoming a national leader in the

         11  use of information technology as an innovative means

         12  to improve the efficiency and accessibility of

         13  municipal government.

         14                 The Municipal Art Society looks

         15  forward to working with you in the future in support

         16  of this initiative.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. SANDLER: Thank you very much, Mr.

         19  Perkins. To introduce myself again, I'm Ross

         20  Sandler, and I'm the Director of the Center for New

         21  York City Law, and a Professor of Law at New York

         22  Law School, and I welcome the opportunity to speak

         23  to this Committee, because we at New York Law School

         24  have been following a similar project and I don't

         25  believe it conflicts with your legislation, but we'd
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          2  like to talk about it, because it does relate to

          3  what you're doing and how you can do it and how you

          4  can do it even better.

          5                 About four years ago, the Center for

          6  New York City Law, with its website, began working

          7  with the Office of Administrative Trials and

          8  Hearing, OATH. They had about 6,000 individual

          9  decisions, which were electronic but unavailable to

         10  the public.

         11                 We had the website so we began

         12  working with them on how to put their decisions up

         13  on our website and we bought and perfected a program

         14  which allowed full searchability of the documents,

         15  so you could search by word, by name, by judge,

         16  anything that you would like to search by just as if

         17  you were on West Law or Alexis.

         18                 We put the decisions up, and then we

         19  realized that what we did with OATH could be done

         20  with any City agency, and we did that. Now we have

         21  four agencies up. Conflicts of Interest, all of

         22  their advisory opinions, the Loft Board, and all of

         23  the decisions by the Office of Collective

         24  Bargaining, about 12,000 decisions that are

         25  currently up.
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          2                 We are also working with the Tax

          3  Appeal Tribunal, with the Commission on Human Rights

          4  and the Department of Consumer Affairs to put their

          5  decisions up.

          6                 In other words, this is a free to the

          7  City, free to the users, law school putting up a

          8  library of administrative decisions, working with

          9  city agencies for full searchability. The way it is

         10  managed is each of the agencies put up their own

         11  decisions, they manage it collectively, and now what

         12  I'd like to do is show you how you do this and what

         13  we are doing on our current web site.

         14                 This is Jonathan Rosenbloom, who has

         15  been responsible for this project and working with

         16  the City agencies.

         17                 Why don't you just explain what

         18  you're doing and what you're doing as you're doing

         19  it.

         20                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: Up on the screen now

         21  is the home page for this claw.org website.

         22  Basically in three sections, there's the navigation

         23  on the left, there's a static area here and then

         24  there's a more dynamic area here. In each of these

         25  sections we try to highlight the New York City
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          2  Administrative Decisions page, so we can go ahead

          3  right to that now.

          4                 What we've done here is working with

          5  the agencies we've tried to make this as easy to use

          6  as possible.

          7                 This is a search page and it's

          8  basically a two-step process. The first is you

          9  select the agency you're interested in, and as Mr.

         10  Sandler mentioned, we have four of them: Conflicts

         11  of Interest Board, Loft Board, Office of

         12  Administrative Trials and Hearings and Office of

         13  Collective Bargaining.

         14                 So if we select Office of

         15  Administrative Trials and Hearings, the Conflicts of

         16  Interest Board, that's step one; step two is the

         17  input of search, say we do Council, and 2001. And

         18  one other quick thing on this page is that if you

         19  select the agency itself here, it will open up a

         20  page that describes the agencies and the decisions

         21  that are included in the site.

         22                 So, for example, for Office of

         23  Collective Bargaining, you see here in the last

         24  sentence, it says that search for decisions from

         25  here are 1968, comprehensive to the present.
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          2                 If we go back to our search now,

          3  again, Conflicts of Interest Board, Office of

          4  Collective Bargaining, Council 2001 and we hit

          5  search. So right now it's going through all the

          6  decisions that are on each of those databases and

          7  pull any of the ones that have Council in 2001, and

          8  what we've done here is we've tried to set it up in

          9  as clear fashion as possible, with the name of the

         10  decision on the left and the agency here on the

         11  right.

         12                 It's picked up 26 documents.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: So, Council

         14  2001, what's that?

         15                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: Those are the search

         16  terms that we've actually done a search on each of

         17  those databases.

         18                 MR. SANDLER: Those are words. Those

         19  are simply the words, and what we've done --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The Council is

         21  like New York City Council?

         22                 MR. SANDLER: It could be anything.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: What is it in

         24  this case?

         25                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: What we can do, we
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          2  can search any search. Let's say we take this

          3  advisory opinion here, and we click open this. We

          4  can find out by going to the decision -- again,

          5  working with the agency we've set this up, and we go

          6  to, in the decision there will be a highlight and it

          7  will say here, and advisory opinion so and so, it

          8  researches it with the Council member, Council

          9  member, Council member, and it highlights the actual

         10  decisions -- I mean the actual terms we've used to

         11  locate this decision. And as you go through, other

         12  terms will be highlighted.

         13                 MR. SANDLER: For instance, Council

         14  member, if you knew there was an advisory opinion by

         15  the Conflicts of Interest Board last year and it

         16  related to some activity of the City Council, you

         17  can just put in those words and in three steps you

         18  would have the opinion in front of you.

         19                 Incidentally, I just wanted to say

         20  one other thing. This is relatively a slow

         21  connection that you have here. If you were on a

         22  better connection to the Internet, it would go like

         23  that instead of this wait that we're having right

         24  now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Who is
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          2  responsible for this?

          3                 MR. ROSENBLOOM: This way, if you're

          4  not aware of the exact advisory opinion you're

          5  looking for, you can go ahead and search it.

          6                 Here again it's a note decision. And

          7  as Professor Sandler mentioned earlier, what we do

          8  is, we've implemented a system in conjunction with

          9  the agencies, that they're able to maintain their

         10  own databases, and if they actually upload all of

         11  their own decisions, they can bring them down, they

         12  can modify them in any way that they see fit.

         13                 One other -- two other things I just

         14  want to show you that we're currently working on.

         15  This is what we call a staging area, where work

         16  off-line with other agencies.

         17                 Here you can see we're working with

         18  the tax appeal tribunal, Department of Consumer

         19  Affairs. So this is where we work with them in

         20  trying to develop an easy format, a quick format,

         21  that people will be able to easily understand and

         22  easily access.

         23                 Just one last thing. This is an

         24  actual tax appeal decision, and as you may have

         25  noticed, the decisions that are on-line are not the
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          2  original -- they're in the original text of the

          3  decisions but they're not in the original format.

          4                 So, what we are very close to

          5  implementing is an original format document, where

          6  you see the on-line version and then have the option

          7  up here, original pagination document, and that will

          8  eventually pull up the original document itself.

          9                 So, if someone wanted to cite a page,

         10  for example.

         11                 MR. SANDLER: Let me, if I my just

         12  recap why we're here and what this is about.

         13                 What you're embarking on is a very

         14  important program to put up these very significant

         15  127 and more documents of the City. Those are the

         16  official reports called for by the Charter. We think

         17  that's very important and we support that.

         18                 What we are doing is we're going to

         19  the agencies that do administrative decision-making,

         20  things that lawyers, union representatives, members

         21  of the public, press, Council members, officials

         22  themselves want but can't get because these are

         23  mostly not anywhere. They're in file cabinets or not

         24  even electronically prepared, and what we're doing

         25  is by working with the agencies, putting the
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          2  decisions up in full searchable format so that you

          3  or anybody else can get them or get them on a free

          4  basis.

          5                 What this is effectively is a free,

          6  private municipal library that is working with City

          7  agencies providing this information to the general

          8  public, and what we hope is that the City Council

          9  members themselves and the staff will learn to use

         10  this system and find it of value and see how we can

         11  be helpful to the City, and with a private

         12  operation, private in a sense of law school, a

         13  public law school, provide this sort of service for

         14  the City, and bring to bear the skill of law

         15  librarians and lawyers to make sure the material is

         16  appropriate and can be appropriately used, and we

         17  appreciate the opportunity to share this with you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Now, who pays for this?

         21                 MR. SANDLER: That's a good question.

         22                 What we did, we saw this as a public

         23  service, and we've been able to raise foundation

         24  money and law school money to support it.

         25                 We currently have a grant from the
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          2  Remson Foundation (phonetic), and the New York

          3  Community Trust, to pay for the cost that we have.

          4  And our costs are not very different from the costs

          5  that you saw.

          6                 We have a web master, we have our own

          7  server, and we have the work of law students and

          8  staff at the center who are making sure that

          9  decisions are put up and put up correctly.

         10                 Another factor that is important in

         11  this is that these are administrative law decisions,

         12  and very often they have to be updated.

         13                 For instance, when OATH makes a

         14  decision it's basically a recommendation to another

         15  agency, and that agency has to either adopt that

         16  decision or modify it, and then there may be

         17  litigation after that.

         18                 We follow those decisions and work

         19  with the agencies to bring those Administrative Law

         20  decisions up to date so you can get those as well.

         21                 So, the costs are currently paid for

         22  by foundation grants and the law school's budget. In

         23  effect, it's the public service by the law school.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 And, so, how much does this cost? I

          3  mean, what is the fiscal --

          4                 MR. SANDLER: I think a realistic

          5  budget for a project of this size would be slightly

          6  in excess for $100,000, annually.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Annually.

          8  $100,000 buys you a webmaster, what else?

          9                 MR. SANDLER: Buys you the programs

         10  you need. It buys you your server time. And your

         11  server support.

         12                 Now, I can't give you an accurate

         13  figure, because the law school provides our

         14  overhead, so our server is sitting in the law school

         15  building on Worth Street. But we purchased the

         16  server with the foundation grant, and we're using

         17  law students who alas work for not very much money,

         18  and we are working with the agencies themselves for

         19  efficiency. The agencies are actually putting up

         20  their own decisions.

         21                 I think it's something like what

         22  you're proposing here, where the agencies would

         23  forward their decisions electronically, forward

         24  their reports electronically. We find that's

         25  efficient, but we also find that you have to manage
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          2  that process, and the way we manage it is we invite

          3  the participating City agencies to meet with us

          4  every month and go over whatever problems emerge,

          5  and essentially manage their own libraries, so that

          6  they're happy with not only the content of the

          7  decisions, but the look of their decisions as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 I'm going to interrupt just for a

         11  moment. This is a Committee of Chairs, and we've

         12  just been joined by the Chairwoman of our Health

         13  Committee from the Borough of Manhattan, Christine

         14  Quinn.

         15                 And as a Committee of Chairs, it's a

         16  Committee of individuals that have other matters to

         17  address on behalf of the people of the City of New

         18  York, sort of like a land of kings and queens. So,

         19  we're going to have to take a moment to have a vote

         20  on this legislation and then we'll come back,

         21  because I want to take advantage of the members that

         22  are available now, and may not be available shortly

         23  thereafter.

         24                 So, without further ado, I would like

         25  to start the vote.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I want to take a

          4  moment to say, first, this is an extraordinary piece

          5  of legislation. Once again, I want to commend the

          6  Chairwoman of the Technology Committee for the work

          7  that she has done in bringing this forward to the

          8  Council, as well as the Administration for their

          9  assistance. I hope we can get the similar

         10  cooperation when it comes to DORIS and the Giuliani

         11  papers.

         12                 In any case, I want to vote aye and

         13  recommend to the Committee that they do the same.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I vote aye. I

         20  just want to apologize for being out of the room,

         21  we're having a hearing on the Olympic thing next

         22  door, which has a little venue in my district

         23  potentially.

         24                 I vote aye. Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         10  the affirmative and zero in the negative and no

         11  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         12                 Council Members, please sign the

         13  Committee report. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Questions from members?

         17                 MR. SANDLER: May I just add one

         18  thing.

         19                 The decision that's up is one of the

         20  decisions that has been updated. You notice that the

         21  OATH recommended one level of penalty, but the TLC

         22  imposed a greater penalty and that's the kind of

         23  thing that we do with the agencies to keep these

         24  decisions updated and accurate.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Chairman
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          2  Vallone, please don't leave. You have to sign,

          3  otherwise it won't count.

          4                 Let me again stress to the Committee

          5  my appreciation of their cooperation with the

          6  scheduling of the work of this Committee. I know

          7  that we have been doing a lot of meetings, but your

          8  attendance has been extraordinary and we've been

          9  able to move a lot of legislation through as a

         10  result, so I just want to make sure you understand

         11  how much I appreciate it.

         12                 Are there questions, Councilwoman?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Micaela, I have a

         14  question and also a statement.

         15                 First of all, in terms of the

         16  archiving, I'm going to thank you for your comments.

         17  We have been talking about it and trying to figure

         18  out server space and the best way to keep all that

         19  material.

         20                 And secondly, on the community

         21  boards, as you notice from the legislation, they do

         22  have a year as opposed to a shorter amount of time

         23  for the City agencies, and we have been, as you have

         24  been serving them to see the hardware, software

         25  circumstances. So, we're working on that and we look
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          2  forward to working with you to help them get there.

          3                 But I think they'll be happy to have

          4  a site for those to put their material.

          5                 In terms of GIS, it's something that,

          6  as you know, I've thought about also. I know that

          7  the Administration is concerned about utility

          8  information and airport information, as you know,

          9  but we'll work to push them to put up non-secure

         10  information up on the net. So, I'll be glad to work

         11  with you on that.

         12                 I also hope that we can take some of

         13  the City law information and perhaps apply it and

         14  work with DORIS, because obviously searchable is

         15  something that's key to all of this document

         16  information.

         17                 It's not really helpful unless you

         18  can search it, and how to figure out a way of having

         19  it maybe on the agency site and on the DORIS site,

         20  or one or the other would be great.

         21                 Of course, one of my questions is,

         22  why didn't the agencies do what City Law is doing,

         23  but congratulations.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 MR. SANDLER: We would be delighted to
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          2  work with DORIS on this, and bring whatever

          3  information we have and help them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just be

          5  sure. You did indicate, Ms. Birmingham, other kinds

          6  of municipal information that should be available

          7  on-line those documents covered by the bill, what

          8  were they again?

          9                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: I was referring

         10  specifically to geographic information that's

         11  produced by Department of City Planning, or the

         12  Parks Department.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Census

         14  information.

         15                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Census information.

         16                 New York now has one of the most

         17  detailed geographic base maps of the City.

         18                 Obviously there are layers of that

         19  map that are sensitive, such as underground

         20  utilities and things below the surface, but there

         21  are building footprints, street parks, basic -- it's

         22  a very highly detailed map that is so useful to

         23  community boards and other organizations that right

         24  now they can't access it.

         25                 So, it would be a key piece of
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          2  information to have publicly available.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I'm wondering

          4  how this legislation would relate to an organization

          5  like the Board of Elections, for instance?

          6                 What information would you see being

          7  important from that point of view? Either one of

          8  you?

          9                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: In terms of voting

         10  data?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Voting data,

         12  whatever other.

         13                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Definitely. I think

         14  that's definitely a type of information that's

         15  valuable. You often see it produced by private

         16  consulting firms, that somehow manage to get that

         17  information or buy that information, but definitely

         18  that is something that is very useful for good

         19  government non-profit organizations, as well as

         20  community-based groups that are advocating for

         21  certain issues that can often be very helpful.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Okay. Any other

         23  questions? Any other?

         24                 MR. SANDLER: The only site that I'm

         25  aware of is the Campaign Finance Board site, which
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          2  does have a lot of information but does not have

          3  voting results.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The Board does

          5  not presently have that on site either. We'll have

          6  to make sure that happens under the new leadership.

          7                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Could I just add one

          8  thing, if I may?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Sure.

         10                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Right now the

         11  Department of City Planning does have some of its

         12  base maps available to view on their website and for

         13  purchase, but right now it is at the discount rate

         14  of $1,000. That's the cheapest rate. They have

         15  recently dropped the price.

         16                 So, something like that is a big

         17  hinderance to a group or even a community board that

         18  can't afford an expense of a thousand dollars to

         19  access this information.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Any other

         21  questions? Comments?

         22                 Thank you very much for your

         23  testimony and the work that you do on behalf of our

         24  City, and please have a good holiday season.

         25                 MS. BIRMINGHAM: Thanks.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Again, I want to

          3  thank the Committee and the Chair of the Technology

          4  Committee for the work that they do, and this

          5  meeting is now adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 2:10 p.m.)
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